
N0«JO3'22Ptt 2!53RaiD P(^

31

Lort A. ShiUaetie

Coramiuiour

Kann E. Kcbcrt

Dlmlor

STATE or NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
M3-271-9474 I-800452-334S ExL 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDDAcceas: 1-800-735-2964 www,dbli*.nh.gov

November 1,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with CommunKy
Action Program Belknap Merrimack Counties, Inc. (VC#177203), Concord, NH for the ongoing
provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Services to individuals, youth, and families who
are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by increasing
the price limitation by $193,958 from $545,454 to $739,412 and by extending the completion date
from November 30, 2022 to November 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 23, 2019, item
it23. amended on October 21, 2020, item #12, and most recently amended on November 22,
2021, item #20.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

{Decreased}
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42308906

$105,701 $0 $105,701

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42308906,
42308909

$179,970 $0 $179,970

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42308909

$74,621 $0 $74,621

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

42308912

$108,011 $0 $108,011

The Deparlmealof Health and Human Services'Mistien is lajoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citissns to achieve health and independence.
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2023 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

42308912
$77,151 $113,142 $190,293

2024 074.500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

TBD $0 $80,816 $80,816

Total $545,454 $193,958 $739,412

EXPLANATION

This request is Strie Source because federal regulations require all procurement efforts
to be directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) which requires
the Department to specify the vendor's name during the annual, federal, Continuum of Care (CoC)
competitive application process for up to a year prior to the grant award being issued. As the
Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, the Department is required to issue a
Request for Proposals, through the Continuum, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice of
Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal rank
and review policy, and scoring tools, created to match the federal NOFO. HUD subsequently
awards funding based on strict federal criteria specifying eligible activities, populations to be
served, expected performance outcomes, and time frames for the application competition and
subsequent Departmental agreements. The Department receives notification of the awards and
signed grant agreements from HUD several months later; at which time agreements, such as the
one contained in this request, can be executed.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing the Permanent Housing program that
delivers Rapid Re-housing, tenant-based rental assistance, service access, and supportive
services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness. The program facilitates
the placement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals, youth, and families in
permanent housing while promoting self-sufficiency and independent living.

At a minimum, approximately thirteen (13) households, consisting of individuals and/or
families will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

Using the federally required "Housing First" model, the Contractor provides housing
stability case management and facilitates each participant's entrance to sustained permanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by;

• Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities
of shelter and housing programs.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these pnd other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Belknap and Merrimadt Counties

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN#NH0100L1T002105

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

RespecthJily submitted.

\

U

LorV^. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. ("the Contractor"),

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on October 23, 2019 (Item #23). as amended on October 21, 2020, (Item #12), and as amended on
November 22, 2021 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

November 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$739,412

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1 NH0100L1T001802 (December 1, 2019 through November 30, 2020)
1.2.4.2. NH0100L1T001903 (December 1, 2020 through November 30, 2021)
1.2.4.3. NH0100L1T002004 (December 1. 2021 through November 30, 2022)
1.2.4.4. NH0100L1T002105 (December 1, 2022 through November 30, 2023)

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1 December 1, 2019 - November 30, 2023, not to exceed Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.8, Price Limitation.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8 Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows;

Description

December 1,
2019

through
November

30, 2020

December 1,
2020 through
November

30, 2021

December 1,
2021

through
November

30, 2022

December

1,2022
through
November

30, 2022

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1

Supportive
Services:

$11,700 $11.700 $11,700 $11,700 $46,800
.nr»

Community Action Program
m

Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A03 Page 1 of 4 Date
10/25/2022
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1.2.8.2

Rental

Assistance:
$165,228 $163,116 $169,188 $177,984 $675,516

1.2.8.3

Administrative

Expenses:
$4,274 $4,274 $4,274 $4,274 $17,096

1.2.8.4

Total Program
Amount:

$181,202 $179,090 $185,162 $193,958 $739,412

1.2.8.5

Vendor Match

(25%):
$46,396 $45,841 $47,359 $49,558 $189,154

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3. Project Costs;
Payment Schedule: Review by the State, Subsection 3.4, Payment of Project Costs:, Paragraph
3.4.1., to read:

3.4.1. The Department agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfiilment of this agreement, and shall be in
accordance with the approved line items as specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1,
Budget through Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the
provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject to the
availability of sufficient funds.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Community Action Program

Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A03

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials.

Date
10/25/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/28/2022

Date

—OoeuSlgntd by;

N^rne;°^ren'"^ebert
Title: Division Director

10/26/2022

Date

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,

X—OocuSlgneaby:

Title: chief Executive Officer

Community Action Progran

Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

-DticuSfgned by:

11/1/2022

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DdcuSfgned by;

Date Name: Guanno

Title: Attorney

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

Community Action Program

Bolknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A03 Page 4 of 4
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BMCAP RRH Program

|CoC Funds - NH0100L1T002105

Exhibit B-3 Aniendment A3, Budget

SFY2023 - 12/1/22-6/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTFACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  103.824 $ $ $ $ - $ $  103.824 $ - $
Supportive Services $  6,825 $ $ $ $ - $ $  6,825 $ S
Administration S  2,493 S $ $ i ■ S S  2,493 $ ■ $
25% Reouired Match S  28.909 $ $ $  28.909 $ s $ • $
lUIAL HUU PUNUS/tSALANCt %  142,051 s $ S  26,909 $ - $ S  113,142 $- $

SFY2024 - 7/1/23-11/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance $  74,160 $ S $ s $ $  74.160 1 - $

Supportive Services $  4,875 $ $ $ $ $ $  4,875 I - $
Administration $  1,781 $ $ $ $ S $  1,781 $ - $
25% Required Match $  20,649 $ $ S  20,649 $ S S - $
TOTAL HUD PUNDS/BALANCE S  101,465 % $ S  20,649 $ $ S  80,616 $ - $

TOTAL -12/1/22-11/30/23
T01AL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance $  177,984 $ $ $ $ $ S  177,984 $ - $

Supportive Services $  11,700 S $ $ $ $ $  11,700 $ ■ $
Administration $  4,274 s  - Is • $ $ $ $  4,274 $ - $
25% Required Match $  49,558 5  - ! S $  49,558 S $ $ - S
i Oi AL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  243,516 s $ S  49,558 $ s $  193,958 $ - S

Total W/0 Match 193,958

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A03

Communltv Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.
Exhibit B-3 Amendment A3, Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor intlals:

Date:
iO/26/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M- Scanlan, Secretarv- of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprotlt Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28,1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number; 0005774597

lb

4*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aBlxed

the Seal ofthe State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRiMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Dennis Martino. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. i am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called

and held on January 13. 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,

Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jiii Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven

Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and

further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and

any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable

or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote,

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, i further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence

that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individuai to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 10/27/2022 Signature of Eiected Offirjar
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev. 1/13/2D22
klh COA 2022 - dennts mariino

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone; 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TnVTDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax:603 228-1898

Website: capfam.org
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

09/30/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EICTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAHE*'"^ Andrea NIcklln
(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

ADDRESS; '"a'Kh.cens@crossagency.com

INSUREiUSI AFFORDINO COVERAGE HAtCf

iNSURERA; Selective Insurance Co, of SC 19259

INSURED

Community Action Program Selkn^-Merrlmack Counties Inc.

P,0, Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B; Granis State Health Care and Human Services Seif-

INSURERC: Fedwal Ins Co 20281

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 All lines w/D&O REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMEhfT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAYBE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THSS"
TY

mOLISUBR POLICY EPF POLICY exp
LTR PE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UAeiLlTY

^CLAIMS-MADE I OCCUR

^ENL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER

LOCPOLICY

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANYAUTOX

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HfRED

AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIA6

OEO X

SCHEOULED

AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

RETENTION i

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOVEAr LIABILITY

ANY PROPRlETOfVWMTTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEheER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekw

V/N

E

Directors & Officers Liability

1N8D WVD POUCYNUMBER

S2S09940

S2S09940

S2509940

HCHS20220000547 (3a.) NH

82471794

IMWmO/YYYYI

10/01/2022

10/01/2022

10/01/2022

01/01/2022

04^)1/2022

IMM<DD/YVYY1

10/01/2023

10/01/2023

10/01/2023

01/01/2023

04A}1/2023

UMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMASETOHEMTED
PREMISES lEa occufrencel

MED EXP (Any one pgfsor^)

PERSONAi i ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa flccldenfl

BODILY INJURY (Per persorr)

BODILY INJURY (Per acaosni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecdaefirl

OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

><PER
STATUTE

OTH

ER

EL. EACH ACCIDENT

EL. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

EL. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT

limit

Oeductlble

5 1,000,000

1,000,000

20,000

S 1,000.000

3,000.000

S 3,000,000

S 1,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPBtATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACOrtD 1E1, AdrBUonalRemarlie Scliedule, may be atlacheB Ifmoreepecefi required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

State of New Hampshire: Department of

Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEQ REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACK. COUNTIES, INC.
EUPOWER1K6 COMMUNITIES SINCE ISSS

The Vision of

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

An agency that creates opportunities for all people to thrive, a partner In building strong,
resilient communities, to ensure a more equitable society.

The Mission of

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

To assist in reducing poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the
empowerment of low-income families and individuals to reach economic stability.

The Values of

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

We believe all people should be treated with dignity and respect and recognize that structural
race, gender, and other inequities remain barriers that must be addressed.

We believe that our communities have the capacity and moral obligation to ensure that no
one is forced to endure the hardships of poverty.

We believe that everyone can reach their fullest potential with hope, adequate resources, and
opportunities, and we are committed to achieving that vision.

We pledge ourselves to create an environment that pursues innovation and excellence
through multi-sector partnership and collaboration.

Equity ■ Respect ■ Commitment ■ Exceilence • Hope
Community • Cering • Innovation • Opportunity

The Promise of Community Action

Community Action changes people's lives, embodies the spirit of hope,
improves communities and makes America a better place to live.

We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to helping people help
themselves and each other.

Hp'ptng People ChcTg.'nj

community

vtion
PARTNERSHIP

AUCRICAS »6vr^ nCKTfKC NHWORX
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Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2022 AND 2021
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT AND

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK CQUNTiES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Rnancial Statements

Supplementary Infonnatlon:

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Independent Auditors' Report on Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance required by the Uniform
Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
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9-10

II-24

25-26

27

28-29

30-32
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Leone. ,
McDonnell

lO

CEimFIEf} ACliOONTWnS

Tr, tfOLFEBOKO • NORTH CONW10 trie tioard oi uirectors DCfVER * (S)NMR0
Community Action Pfogram of Belknap-Merrimac* Counties. Inc. sronii^
Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Actfon Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 28. 2022 and 2021. and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 28, 2022
and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accoidance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales. Our responsibilities under fiiose
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of tfie Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. and lo meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for (he Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of fiie consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
feir presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whetfier
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management Is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concem within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not delecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exerdse professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism Uiroughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial s^tements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to ttwse
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounte and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of e^^ressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Courrtles,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
file planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain int^al control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

outer Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated September 8,
2022, on our consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report Is an integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s Internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8,2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

'CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, bultdings and Improvenmts
Equipment, furniture and vehicles
Construction in process

Total property

Less accumulated de^^ectafion

Property, net

OmeR ASSETS

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Tenant security deposits
Due from relat^ party

Total ofrrer assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes {^yable
Line of credit

Accounts payable
Acaued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM UABIUTIES

Paychedt Protection Program loan
Notes payal^, less current por^ shown above
Tenant securi^ deposits

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrfctl(»rs
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES M'lD NET ASSETS

2022

$ 1,384.485
5.244.821
271.926

33,928
138.793

7.073.753

7.368.799

6,335.485
41.401

13,746,685

7.528.363

6217.322

89,466

9.120

65.488

164.076

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

314,265

154,350

3,635,655

1,086.207

1.537.802

6.726279

280.439
620,050

9.120

7.637.886

5.179.734
637,g9

5.617.263

$ 13.455.151

2021

899,766

3,762.609
55,695
73,709

127.996

4,920.175

7.146.516

6.117.020
18.126

13,281,662

7.639.290

5.642.372

65,437
6.B81

72.318

S 13/155.151 S 10.634.865

213,444
380,026

1.525.832
788,951

1.036.941

3.946.196

1.935,300
939.^7

X  6.681

6.627.074

2,758,959
1.048.8^

3.807.791

$ 10.634.865

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNtTY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP • ̂

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Without Donor With Donor

RestricMon? Restrictlone Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards $ 36,462,087 $ $ 36.482,087
Rental income 135.298 135,298
Ottier funds 2.526.432 2,650,984 5,177,416
Paycheck Protecdon Program loan foigiveness 1.615,427 — 1,615,427
In-kind 592,136 - 592,136
United Way 2,123 . 2,123
Interest Income 74 74
ReaTrzed gain on sale of equipment 7,200 - 7,200

Total revenues and other support 41.360,777 2,650,984 44,011.761

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 3.062,287 (3.062.287) -

Total 44,423.064 (411.303) 44.011.761

EXPENSES

Program 40.084,851 _ 40.084,651
Management 1.917.438 - 1,917,438

Total expenses 42.002.269 - 42.002,289

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,420,775 <411.303) 2,009,472

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 2.758.959 1,048.832 3,807.791

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 5.179.734 $  637,529 $ 5,817.263

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

S
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COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28.2021

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental Income

Ottier funds

In-kind

Without Donor

Restflctcons

$  20,625,325
123,657

2,375,403
490,035

Vflth Donor

Restfictions

3,733,525

Total

S 20,825,325
123,657

6,108,928
490,035

United Way
Interest Income

Realized gain on sale of equipment

5,297

383

3,500
-

5.297

383
3,500

Total revenues and other support 23.629,600 3,733.526 27957,125

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 3,047.507 (3,047,507)

Total 26,671,107 686,018 27.357.125

EXPENSES

Program
Management

26,194,346
1,274,501

- 26,194,346
1,274,501

Total expenses 27,468,847 ,

27,468.847

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE GAIN ON

INVESTMENT IN UMITED PARTNERSHIP {797,740) 686.018 (111,722)

GAIN ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 64,397 * 64.397

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (733,343) 686,018 (47,325)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,992,894 362,814 3,355,708

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP 499.408 499.408

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S 2,758,959 S 1,048.832 $  3,807.791

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRtMACK COUNTIES. >NC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2Q22

Program Management

Salaries and svages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs:

Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Con^ences. conventions and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer service
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

$ 7,961,177

2,296,690
194,343

1.267.982
25.639,659

15,361

159,844

49,860
1,141

28,133

13,964

29,187
124,730
16,276

88,702

111,990

926,679
566,151
692.982

S 1,180,579
228,375

9,648

114,418

74.855
152

44.534

8,731

27,696

26,841
43.856

104,142

53,611

Total

9.141,756
2.525,065
203,991

1.382.400
25,639,659

74.855
15.513

204,378
58,591
1,141

55,829

13,964
56,028

168,586
16,276

192.844

111,990
980,290
566,151
592.982

t  40.084.851 $ 1.917.438 S 42.002.289

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2Q21

Pfoaram Management

Salaries arrd wages
Payroll taxes arni benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program swvices
Other costs:

Accountir^ fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Confarences, conventions and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

8,423.266
2,308,290
145,104

1.293,121
11,796,741

19,604

165,804
56,087
6,736

34,562

632

39,595

123,704

10,040

190,837

47,178

584,982
458.009
490,034

$ 587,382

229,777
809

136,322

80,013

30,710
8,986

3,551

22,936
27,528
7,019

62,549
8,660

68,257

Total

9.010,668
2,538,067
145.913

1.429,443
11,796,741

80,013

19,604
196,514
65,073

6,736
38.113

632

62,533

151,232
17,059

253,386

55,838
653,239
458,009
490,034

S 26.194.346 $ 1.274.501 $ 27.468,847

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in nel assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Paydieck Protection program\ loan forgiveness
interest on deferred financing costs
Realized gain on sale of equipment
Gain on investment in limited partnership
DeCTease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parly

Decrease (increase) in current liabilities:
Accsunts payable
Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

2022

2.009^72 $

566,151
(1.615.427)

483

(7.200)

(1,481,812)
(216,031)

39,781

(65.488)

2,109,823
297,286
soolsei

mi

(47.325)

458,009

484

(3,500)
(64,397)

(1.203.458)
(32,979)
(18,723)

356,371

23.690

(47.575)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,137,869 (579,203)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVmeS

Proceeds from sale of property
Additions to property
Investments

7,200
(1,141,101)

(10,797)

3,K)0
(618.410)
(17.918)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1.144,698) (632.828)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVITIES
Net Paycheck Protection loan
Net repayments on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

(39.434)
(225,878)
(219,309)

1,935.300
(169,972)
(199.152)

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVmES (484.421) 1.566,176

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 508,750 354,145

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 965,203 549,026

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 62.032

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1.473.053 $ 965.203

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash

Cash escrow and resen/e funds

$ 1,384.485
69.468

$ 899,766
65.437

i 1.473,953 S 965.203

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BR ■

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (COMTINUH))
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2B. 2022 AND Z021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for irtleresi

2^ 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF N0NCAK1 INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTtVITlES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts receivable

Prepaid eivenses
Pk^kt^. net
Security deposits

$ -  t 2/496
10.827

980.OS9
S.1S2

Total transfer of assets Oom new^ consoUated LP » -  f 1.001544

Ttwisfer of SabBIUes from ne«/(y consoBdafed LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued expertsm
Security deposits
hfele payable

$ •  % 6,825
7862
8.132

336.311

Total trar«fer ofliabOIUes froin new^yooftsoliMlod LP 1 ■  t 380.330

Total transfer orpartr>«B' cajAal from newfy consoBdated LP
Partner^p capKal previously recortlsd as Investment In rMated paifes

i '  1 499808
203836

Tolal eanefer of partnera' o^iftef trpm newfy constated LP t -  s 703246

Sm to Conmildstad Fimnetal ̂itteinuW
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. IMC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties. Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that sen/es nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the ac<X)unts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.. and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting Interest in their goveming board. All
significant Intercompany Items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial statements.

■ Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
■ CAP BMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
accnjal basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report information regarding Its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are pepetual
In nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
pepetulty.

11
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases In net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $637,529 and $1,048,832 at
February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization Is subject to examinations by tax authorities for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "C" Corporation
under the Intemal Revenue Code. The Coiporation accounts for deferred income taxes
Under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), "Accounting for Income Taxes". The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax rate expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss carryforwards available at February 28, 2022 and 2021,

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership is taxed as a partnership. Federal income taxes are
not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are included in the
partners' federal income tax retums based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with Uie State of New Hampshire
and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.

12
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Property

Property and equipment Is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation Is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally Insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses In
such accounts and believes It is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

Contributed Services
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received
$592,136 and $490,035 in donated facilities, sen/ices and supplies for the years ended
February 28,2022 and February 28, 2021, respectively, as follows:

13
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIFR, IMP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization receives contribuled professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $18,731 and $18,937 for the years ended Februarv 28
2022 and February 28, 2021, respectively.

The Organization also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $573,405 and
$471,098 for the years ended February 28,2022 and 2021, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28, 2022 and February 28. 2021 totaled $134,193
and $14,287, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in. first-out mettiod.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with donor restrictions rf they are received with donor imposed stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period In
which the contribution is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue Is recognized as revenue when the services are performed.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due, and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of
one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred
to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership expects to
be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the lease
will be expensed as incurred.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP- MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff.

Expense

Wages and benefits
Depreciation
All other expenses

Method of allocation

Time and effort

Actual assets used by program
Direct assignment

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 28, 2022
and 2021;

Financial assets at year end;
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Accounts receivat3le

Investments

Cash reserve

Cash escrow

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Reserve funds

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2022

$  1,384,485
5,244,621
138,793

81.143
8.325

6.857.367

637,529

81.143

718.672

2021

$  899,766
3,762,809
127,996

62,103
3.334

4.856.008

1,048,832
62.103

1.110.935

S 6.138.695 $ 3.734.073

It Is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $6,710,000 and $4,360,000, at February 28, 2022 and
2021, respectively. The Organization has a line of credit with $445,650 and $219,972,
available to borrow on at Febmary 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IISIC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are stilt outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2022 and 2021. The Organization has iro
policy for charging Interest on overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,537,802 and $1.036,941 as of February 28,2022 and 2021, respectively.

5- RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan Is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2022 and 2021
totaled $186,976 and $193,103, respectively.

6. LEASED FACILITIES
Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2022 and 2021. the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $544,299 and $542,317. respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the aix>ve leases are as follows;

Year Ended

Februarv 28 Amount

2023 $ 478,248
2024 419,395

2025 245.038
2026 88,762
2027 88,762

Thereafter 688.217

Total $ 2.008.422
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COMMUNITY ACTION PRQGBAM B£LKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIFS IMP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested \wlth the employees in the amount of $660,158 and $415,580 at
February 28,2022 and 2021, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (3.25% and 4.75% at February 28. 2022 and
2021, respectively) plus 1 %. but not less than 6% per annum. The line Is secured by all
the Organization's assets. There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding at February
28, 2022. There was no balance outstanding at February 28. 2021.

The Organization has an additional revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the
amount of $400,000, with a bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly
variable interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41% and 2.62% at February 28.
2022 and 2021, respectively). The line is secured by all the Organization's assets.
There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2022. There was a balance of
$380,028 outstanding at February 28,2021.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 28, 2022, approximately $13,200,000 (30%), and
$15,300,000 (35%), respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
the Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury. For
the year ended February 28. 2021. approximately $11,400,000 (42%). of the
Organization's total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support from these departments.

10- LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28,2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

5.50% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by
property of the Organization. $ 218,228 $ 225,459
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2ft ?ft?2 AND 2n2l

IMV;

5.75% note payable to a financial Institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note Is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center.

2022

219,279

2021

375.827

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold Improvements In monthly installments for
principal and Interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 42.958 50,507

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Conasrd, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 116,572 164,553

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the year
ended February 28, 2022. (See Note 11). 280,439 1,935,300

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Hampshire Housing
deferred until June 1, 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash is available. The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate. 343.081 343.081

Total long-term debt before unamortlzed deferred
financing cost 1,220.557 3.094.727

Unamortlzed deferred financing c^sts f5.8031 (6.2861

Less amounts due within one year
1,214.754
314.265

3,088.441
213.444

Long term portion $  900.489 $
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIFR

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2022 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2023 $ 314,265
2024 236,212
2025 106,239
2026 32,177
2027 18.840

Thereafter 512.824

11. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act C'CARES Act").

On September 14, 2021, the Organization received partial forgiveness In the amount of
$1.615,427. The forgiven proceeds are included in income for the year ended Februaiy
28, 2022. The remaining $312,873 has been converted to a ioan, due in 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The ioan will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28. 2022 Is $280,439. (See Note
10).

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28,2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Land $  279,340 $  279.340
Building and Improvements 7,069,459 6,867.176
Equipment and vehicles 6,335,485 6,117,020
Construction in process 41.401 18.126

13.745,685 13,281,662
Less accumulated depreciation 7.528.363 7.639.290

Property and equipment, net $ 6 217 322 S 5.642.372

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, 2022 and 2021 totaied
$566,151 and $458,009, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP_-MERR1MACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2022.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28.2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

NH Food Pantry Coalition $  663 $ 663

Senior Center 143,437 142,817
Elder Services 68,427 499.201
Mary Gale 25,629
NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,064 5,058
Summer Feeding 47,540 60,433
Common Pantry - 5,512
Caring Fund 8,792 8,791
Agency - FAP 27.307 2,604
Agency Head Start 222.258 224,847
Agency - FP/PN 87,253 87,387
Community Crisis 350 350

Other Programs 809 11.169

Total net assete donor restrictions
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Betmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place. Inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

The sen/Ices performed by the Organization Included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties). HUD <x>mpliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
28. 2022 and 2021 was $324,385 and $181,384. respectively, and Is Included in
accounts receivables. Additionally, during the year ended February 28, 2022, $65,488
was loaned to a related party and is recorded as an other asset on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has also Invested money
relating to Its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $138,793 and $126,996 at February 28, 2022 and 2021. respecbvely.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value whicti
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework In generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes ttiat fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hlerardiy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for Identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or Indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined Uirough the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are urwbservable inputs In
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or llabHity
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2022 and 2021, the Organization's investments were dassrfied as Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements usino Significant Observable Inputs fLevel

2022 2021

Beginning balance-mutual funds $ 126,996 $ 109,078
Total gains-mutual funds 11.797 17.Q18

Ending balance - mutual funds

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those Instruments.

The Organization also had $1,000 Invested In a Partnership. The Lakes Regton
Partnership for Public Health, at February 28, 2021. During the year ended February 28.
2022, the Organization is no longer a partner and a final K-1 was received.

17, OTHER MATTERS
The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial
and operational results, wilt be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions
continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be Imposed In
response to the pandemic.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

18. TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST
During the year ended February 28. 2021, Community Action Program of Belknap-
Menimack Counties, inc. acquired a partnership interest in a low-income housing
limited partnership, Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership.

The following Is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acquisition.

Date of Transfer 03/01/2020

Cash

Cash reserves

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Property, net
Other assets

$ 3,793
58.239
2,496

10,827
980,089

8.132

Total assets

Note payable
Other liabilities

S  1063.576

s 336,311
24.019

Total liabilities 360,330

Partners' capital

Total liabilities and partners'
capital

703.246

S  1.063.576

19. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.
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20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the consolidated
statement of financial position date, but before the consolidated financial statements are
available to be Issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that
provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated statement
of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
consolidated financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that
provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the consolidated statement of
financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated
subsequent events through September 8, 2022, the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

note 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28. 2022. The information in this Schedule Is presents in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulafiorjs
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

note 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized foltowing the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made In the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTES INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minlmis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited. In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28. 2022. and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated Septembers, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Men-imack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s Internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitafions, during
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our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not Identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement.
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts'
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect orl
the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Puipose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's intemal control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8. 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hamp^ire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compilance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
couid have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2022.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
Identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying sdiedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, In all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Fedeml Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Gosrernment Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of ttie United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report,

We are required to be Independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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ResponsibHities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to atx)ve occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, fotgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovem'de
of intemai control. Noncompliance vs^th the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout ttie
audit

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary In
the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Belknap-Meirimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on Internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses In internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, In the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in Internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe
than a material weakness in Intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section atxjve and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in Intemal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identifled.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord. New Hampshire
September 8,2022
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CQMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IMC

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No Instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. Tbe programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Aging Cluster 93.044,93.045 and
93.053; U.S. Department of Transportation. Formula Grants for Rural Areas. 20.509;
U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program, 21.023.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,223,554.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk audltee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2021-001

Condition: the financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwofk
included accounts that had not been reconciled accurately or in a timely manner.

Recommendation: The auditors' recommend that the financial close process Includes a review
of all significant accounts.

Current Status: Accounts have been reconciled accurately and jn a timely manner. Not a
repeated finding in the current year.
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Effective 9/29/2022

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACRCOUNTJESUNC, ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965 V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis T. Martino, President
Board member since: 2/24/2005

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Chris Pyles, Vice President
Board member since; 1/14/2021

Theresa M. Cromwell

Board member since: 5/10/2005

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer
Board member since: 11/2/2016

Kathy Goode
Board member since: 10/29/2009

A. Bruce Carri, Secretary/Cierk
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009
David Siff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Ashley Reed
MS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

"

David Croft

Board member since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/22 - 2/28/23) board meetings - 3/10/22, 5/12/22,9/8/22,11/10/22,1/12/23

klh:CAPBM BOD 9 2022
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FREEMAN TOTH

Results-oriented leader with strong background in hiring, training, management and employee development.
Exceptional communication and coaching skills. Effectively motivates employees through consistent feedback,
positive reinforcement and leading by example.

HIGHLIGHTS

• Employee onboarding, development and retention - New product launches and trainings - Team building - Multi
media training program development - Fluent in "Earn the Right Sales" process -

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

- Successfully managed all functions related to daily operations of a retail organization. Duties include recmiting, interviewing,
hiring and onboarding. the development and implementation of training programs and performance management plans that
consistently yield positive results.

- Served in multiple leadership roles, working closely with the executive team to establish oiganizational goals and maintain
forward momentum for the company.

• Workforce management and scheduling oversight for multiple locations including over 50 associates and managers.

- Orchestrated regular meetings and trainings focused on sales best practices and exceeding company and individual goals

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Concord, NH Homeless Outreach & Housing Stabilization Manager 2/2019 to Current

As a Homeless Outreach & Housing Stabilization Manager my responsibilities inclutJe Managing a team
responding to referrals from NH 2-1-1 Services with the goal of providing advice, services and assistance to people
experiencing Homelessness or to those whom are at risk of becoming homeless. A typical day may include Visiting
with local shelters, welfare officers, food pantries and homeless resource centers and homeless people in an effort to
Ingratiate myself while building rapport and trust with the local homeless population,

Waltham Traders/IM Wireless

Salem, NH District Manager/Trainer 2/2017 to 10/2018

Hire, onboard and manage multiple associates and managers for multiple high-volume locations throughout New England.
Developed and implemented company training programs and assisted with the opening of multiple high-profile locations.

GoWireless LLC/CVC.

Deny, NH Manager 3/2015 to 1/2017

Directly developed and managed a large team of sales professionals while overseeing daily operations ofthe location. Served in a
critical role during a company acquisition, contributing to a successful transition with minimal operational disruption.

Bedford, NH Sales Manager/Area Manager 02/2002 to 3/2015

Responsibilities included working in conjunction with the executive team to recruit, interview and hire new consultants and

managers while successfully managing multiple high-volume locations. Specialized in building rapport with customers; earning
their trust and creating lifelong customers.

EDUCATION - Keene State College, Keene, NH
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SUSANNA ALLEN

SKILLS &

ABILITIES

I am knowledgeable with various computer programs, including Microsoft Office, HMIS and
ART, Advanced Reporting Tool. I maintain a strong attention to detail, which includes
organizing case management and running the reports for the Belknap-Merrim.ick branch.

EXPERIENCE | HOUSING ̂ABIUZATION COORDINATOR - COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
10/2020 — Present

Organize and manage meetings witlr clients enrolled in the Rapid Rehousing Project, Manaee
HMIS. run quarterly and yearly reports for the br.mch, communicate with Fiscal regarding any
changes to payments, process and approve applications to specific programs or grants and
communicate with ICA. Institute for Community Alliances, about reporting deadlines and
procedures.

CREDIT & PAYMENT PROCESSING SPECIALISr- J.JILL GROUP
6/2006-10/2020

Communicate with our warehouse to resoh e any slipping or packing errors, operate a PCS
system daily, train associates on standard refunding procedures, maintain the Sitspended
Order Repon, and process refunds and exchanges in our catalog system.

SALES ASSOCIATE - VICTORIAS SECRET

7/2002 -10/2011

Sold .specific Launch items and credit cards, demonstrated proficiency using the POS system,
assisted management with handling money, org.anized the store in an appealing manner and
assisted customers.

EDUCATION I BUNAC WORK ABROAD-2005
Pursued a work program to Edinburgh, Scotland

YORK ST JOHN COLLEGE — Spring 2004
Studied British Litci-ature and Writing in York, England

KEENE STATE COLLEGE - 2001-2005

Obtained a B.A. in English Literature with a minor in Writing

CERTIFICATES | Certified in the use of HMIS, Homele.ss Maintenance and Information System and ART,
Advanced Reporting Tool.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Human Services

Continuum of Care - Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) Program - Amendment #3

12/01/2022-11/30/2023

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Freeman Toth
Housing Stabilization &
Homeless Outreach

Manager

$ 49,588.50 10% $ 4,958.85

Susanna Allen Housing Stabilization
Coordinator

$ 41,106.00 40% $16,442.40
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITV

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 I-S004S2-334S EiL 9474

Fai:603-27M230 TOD Acm»; I-S00-73S-2964 www.4hhs.nh.|ov

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

October 27,2021

N0y04'21ft" 8=15 RCTO

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Community Action Program Belknap
Merrtmack Counties, Inc. (VC#177203), Concord NH, for the ongoing provision of Permanent
Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and families who are eigTeriencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $185,162 from $360,292 to $545,454 and extending the
completion date from November 30,2021 to November 30.2022, effective December 1.2021, upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Gcvemor and Council on October 23,2019, item #23
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on October 21, 2020, item #12.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
ftscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Cumnt

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2020 102/500731
Contracts for

Program Services
TBD $105,701 $0 $105,701

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Program Services TBD $179,970 $0 $179,970

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Program Services
TBD $74,621 $0 $74,621

2022 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
TBD $0 $106,011 $108,011

2023 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst artd Relief
TBD $0 $77,151 $77,151

Sub Total $360,292 $166,162 $545,464

Tht Dtportmtnl 0/ Health and Human Stroicts'Miuion it lajoin tammunilies and families
in providing! opportunUiti far eilitent to achieve health and independence.



His Excallency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte CouncO

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing the Permanent Housing program that
delivers Rapid Re-housing, tenant-based rental assistance, service access, and supportive
services to indiwduals and families who are experiencing homelessness. The program facilitates
the placement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families in permanent housing
while promoting self-sufficiwcy and independent living.

Approximately thirteen (13) households, consisting of individuals and/or families, will be
served annually.

This program serves individuals and families experiencing homelessness who would
otherwise likely be left in unsafe situations without permanent housing. Using the Housing First
model, the Contractor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management plans to facilitate each
participant's movement Into sustained permanent housing. Addttionaiiy, the Contractor works to
maximize each partidpant's ability to live more independently by providing connections to
community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following;

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, induding various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to indude match dollars.

• Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two
(2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor and Coundl approval The Department is exercisir^ its option to renew
services for the one (1) remaining year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without a safety net. Additionally, the Department
will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for
these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served; Geiknap and Merrimack Counties.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #NH0100L1T002004

In the event that the Federal Funds t>ecome no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A^hibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

• This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Rapid Re-Housing Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 23, 2019 (Item #23), as amended on October 21, 2020, (Item #12), the Contractor agreed
to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2, Renewal, Subsection 2.1, the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

November 30,2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$545,454

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1, by adding Subsection 1.10., to read;
1.10, The Contractor shall facilitate file reviews conducted by the Department onsite or

remotely, as determined by the Department, on an annual basis, or as otherwise
requested by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to, participant files
and financial data.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2,4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1 NHOIOOLITOOI8O2 (December 1, 2019 through November 30, 2020)
1.2.4.2. NH0100L1T001903 (December 1. 2020 through November 30. 2021)
1.2.4.3. NH0100L1T002004 (December 1, 2021 through November 30,2022)

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2,7,1, to read:

1.2,7,1 December 1, 2019-November 30, 2022, not to exceed Form P-37, General
Provisions Block 1.8, Price Limitation.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1,-Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2,8, to read;

1.2.8 Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as
follows:

Community Action Program Belknap-Marrimack Counties, fnc.
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A02 Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page lot 4 Date
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Description

December 1,
2019 through
November 30,

2020

December 1,
2020 through
November 30,

2021

December 1,
2021 through
November 30,

2022

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1

Supportive
Services;

$11,700 $11,700 $11,700 $35,100

1.2.8.2

Rental

Assistance:
$165,228 $163,116 $169,188 $497,532

1.2.8.3

Administrative

Expenses:
$4,274 $4,274 $4,274 $12,822

1.2.8.4

Total Program
Amount:

$181,202 $179,090 $185,162 $545,454

1.2.8.5

Vendor Match

(25%):
$46,396 $45,641 $47,359 $139,596

7. Modify Exhibit B. Methods apd Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3. Project Costs:
Payment Schedule: Review by the State, Subsection 3.4, Payment of Project Costs:, Paragraph
3,4.1., to read:

3.4.1, The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line items as specified in Exhibit 8-1, Amendment #1. Budget through
Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the provisions of
Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.

8. Add Exhibit B-2 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimacfi Counties. Inc.
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A02

A-S-VO Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date

5
WW7(52i
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/29/2021

Date

-OoeuS^ned by:

santantello

Title: Associate Ccwunissioner

10/28/2021

Date

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
-ObftvSlfliittf by:OMvBlflMb by:

I JuKKt. /Im

Title: chief Executive officer

Community Action Program Befknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A02

A-S-1.0 Pege3of4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form substance and
execution. '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

C—D«cu<lpi*«»y:
I  AunUl

Date

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Communrty Action ProgrjBn Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.
SS-2020-BHS.04-PeRMA-26-A02

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit B-2 AmerHfrrtcnl *2, Budget

BMCAP RRH Program

|CoC Funds - NH0100L1T002004

Activity Name
'Renlal /Us'

BUDGET

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

SFYZ022 - 12/1/21.6/30/22"

VTD MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE
BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

Supportive Servtoes
Administration

i5% Required Maich
lUIAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE"

£.625

2.403

27.626

13S.S37 I

t ■

i ■

27.626

27.626 t

98^93 S •

6J2S

2.493 S •

$ -

108.011 t .

Activity Name
Renist Assistance

Supportive Services

Adminrsiration

25% Required Match

R5»AL HUD FDNUSSfflALANCE-

BUDGET

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

MONTHLYYTO

SfY2Q23 . 7/1/22-11/30/22

70,495

4.875

1.781

19,733

98.884

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET

19.733

19,733

YTD

J •

MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET

70,495

4.875

77,181

YTD

S -

MONTHLY

Activity Name
I'leniaiAssisiance
Supportive Services

AOministrailon

25% Required Match
lOTAL HUD FUNUS/UAUNCE

TOTAL PROGRAM COST
TOTAL -12/1/21-11/30/22

BUDGET

169.188

11.700

*274

47.359

232.521 5

YTD

■%

MONTHLY
CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET YTD

47.359

47459 S .

S •

MONTHLY
BHS SHARE

BUDGET

169.188

11.700
4,274

186.162

YTD

$ -

MONTHLY

Total WJO Match 165,162

SS-2020-BKS^-PERMA-26-A02
Communitv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countiesi Int.
Exhibit 8-2 Amendment »2, Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Intials:

0,^,: 10728/2021
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOVSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH OJMt
M3.27I-9474 I-«)MS2-SM5 EiL 9474

Fai: MS-271-4230 TODAcecu: t-80»-7}S.2964 inrw^hb».nb.g«v

September 15. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic end
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with the \^ndor
highlighted in bold below, for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive
Services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option and increasing the total
' price limitation by $179,090 from $443,456 to $622,546 and extending the compietion date from
November30.'2020rtb"Novem6er 30r202ireff^i^Decefnb'^ir2020,"6rup'on'G6vefno'r and'
Council approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved as specified in the table below

Vendor Name Ve.ndor
Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

fOecreese)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Community
Action Program
Belknap
Merrimack

177203.

B001

Belknap &
Merrimack

Counties

3161,202 $179,090 $360,292
0:10/23/19

023

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.

177511-

R001 '
Sullivan

County
$71,012 $0 $71,012

0:10/23/19

«23

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.

177611.

R001

Sullivan

County
$117,669 $0 $117,669

0: 10/23/19

#23

The Mental Health

Center for Southern

New Hampshire
dbaCLM Center for
Life Management

174116-

R001

Western

Rocklngham
&C008

Counties

$73,573 $0 $73,673
0:10/23/19

023

Total: $443,456 $179,090 $622,646

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and ere
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year .2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

Tl\t DtpeHmtnl ofHtalili and Human Strvicet'MUtien it la join tommunUUt endfoniiUu
•  i'l providing opporiunilitt for eilUint la achieve heatih and independence.
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• His Excallency, Oevemof Chnstophef T. Swnunu
and thtt Honorable Coundt

Page 2 Of 2

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the original contract was subr^ctted as a sole source
request and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendment to be identified as a solo source
request

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Perrr^anent Housing program mat
delivers Rapid Re-housing, tenant-based rental assistance service a^s and sup^rtve
services to Individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness. The program facilrtatesrmolemeT5 homeless and chronically homeless indnriduats and 'amities to
housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately tf'irteen (13)
individuals and, or, families, will be served from December 1, 2020. to November 30, 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of StabilizaUon and Crisis
Management plans, vendors facilitate each participant's movement into sustained penna^rrt
housing wttile providing connections to community and mainstream services to maximize each
participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools:
• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual

agreements.
^  ̂Semi^annual'slatislical're^rtsrmcluding'varlous-demographiclnforrnatlonand

income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
attivities of shelter and housing programs

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding.
agreUent of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer perrnanent
housino options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families, in
unsafe and deadly situations,, without a safety net. Additionally, the Departrnent ^
compliance with federal regulations, which could result m a loss of federal funding for these and
other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

•  Area served: Belknap and Merrimack Counties.
Sourceof Funds: CFDA#14.267, FAIN#s: NH0100L1T001802. NH0100L1T001903.
In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Fur>ds will not

be requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERWCES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

0»-S$-<2-i23010-7tZT HEM.TH ANO 80CUL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES.
HOMELESS & KOUSWO. HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

Community Aetloi Prog'km B*lkna|>-W«rt<mKk CeunilM, Inc. (Vondof n7720S-BM1)

SiAia Fiwal

Taar
Cats / Aeceurn Class TUla Job Numbar

Current Modinad

Sudgai

increasad

(Oac/aasad]
Arrtounl

Ravisad

ModiSed Budge)

2020 102/500731 Contracis lor Prooram Sarvicas TBD $105,701 $0 $105,701

2021 102/500731 Contracis lor Prooram Sarvicas TBO $75,501 $104,459 $179,670

2022 1021500731 CflntrarJs Inr Prooram Sanrieas T80 $0 $74,621 $74,621

Sub Total $181,202 $179,090 $350,292

Southwaaltm Community Senrfeea. inc. (Vande'177S11-R001)
irantral StrMt Patmanant Htuialng Program)

SiaM Fiscal
Year

' Class / Accown Class Tloa Job Number
Currani ModiOad

Budgei

(txretsed

IDeeraasad)
Amauni

Revised

Modified Budget

2020- 102/500731 Corlraeta lot Prooram Sendcas TBO $47,341 $0 $47,341

2021 ' 102/500731 Corlracls lor Prooram Sarvicas TBO $23,571 $0 $23,671

2022 102/500731 Coniracts for Prooram Sarvicas TBD $0 $0 $C

Sub Total $71,012 $0 $71,013

Soulhwatum Community S«rv4«M,lne. (V«ndort177S1t-R0B1I

Stale Fisoai

Yesr
Class / Account

1

Class Tiiie Job Number
Current ModITed

Bixigei

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

MeOTied Budget

2020 102/500731 Conuaos for Prooram Servicas TBD $75,445 $0 $76,445

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Prooram Sendees TBO $39,224 $0 $39,224

2022 102/500731 Com/acts for Prooram Services TBO $C SO $C

Sub Total $117,559 $0 $117,569

THo Mintal HatlUi CoMor (ot Southern Now Hompohiro dbo CLM Conlor lor Ulo Minaflomcnl (Vondor >17411S-R001)

Stale Fiscal

Year
Cuss/Account ' Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amouni

Revised

Modifled Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts (or Prooram Sendees TfiO $30 655 $0 $30.65!

2021 102/500731 Coniracts (or Prooram Sarvicas TBO '  $42,918 $0 $42.91!

2022 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Servicas TBO $0 $0 $C

Sub Total $73,573 $0 $73,573

GfondTotoll t4*a.45tl S17S.W0I 8622,5461

SS-202MHS-04PERUA-2e-A0l
CAPSM RRH

rtieslOolol Stwol
Papa t el I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re>Housing Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #1') is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Belknap-
Merhmack Counties. Inc..(hereinaflef referred to as "the Contractor), a nonprofit with a place of business
at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord NH 03302-1016.

WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 23, 2019 (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions spedfied in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2. Renewal. Subsection 2.1, the Contract may be arnended and
extended upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
November 30.2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$360,292.

3. Modify Exhibit 8. fi/fethods and Conditions Precedent to Paynient. Section 1. Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1 NHO1OQL1T001802 (December 1. 2019 through November 30.2020).
1.2.4.2. NH0100L1T001903 (December 1, 2020 through November 30, 2021).

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.7. Subparagraph 1.2.7,1, to read:
1.2.7.1 December 1. 2019-November 30,2021, not to exceed $360,292

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
f'aragraph-1.2.8. to read;

1.2.8 Funds altocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description

December 1,

201d through
November 30,

2020

■December 1,
2020 through
November 30,

2021

Total
Cumulative

Amount

1.2 8.1 .Riipportive Services: $11,700 $11,700 $23,400

1,28.2 Rental Assistance: $165,228 3163,116 $328,344

1,2.8.3 Administrative Expenses: $4,274 $4,274 $8,548

1,2.8.4 Total Prooram Amount: $161,202 $179,090 $360,292

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match (25%); $46,396 $45,641 $92,237

Cwnmuniiy AcOon Pfogfafn Beiltftap-M«tri«Meit Couniiw Amendment #1
SS-2020-8HS-04.PERMA-26-A01 Page 1,0' 4

Contrectorlnitlals .
D=t,Mlil£BO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program

6. Modify ExhibH B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 3. Project Costs:
payment Schedule: Review by the State, Subsection 3.4, Payment of Project Costs:. Paragraph
3.4.1 ..to read:

3.4.1. The Stale agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items as specified in E:diibit 8-1, Amendment#!. Budget, and as defined
by HUD under the provisions of Public Law 102^550 and other applicable regulations,
subject to the availability of sufficieni funds.

7, IVtodify Exhibit B-1, Budget Sheet, by deleting and replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-1
Amendment #1, Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

8. Delete Exhibit B-2, Budget Sheet in its entirety.

Conmurlly Aetoi Pfcgfom Bellmap-MarriinicKCooflllM Amendment 41
SS-2020-BHS04-PERMA-2e^01 Page 2 of 4

Conlractw'nitials

Dale'
ialsQA
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re^Housing Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent wttti this Amendment 01 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below. .

state of New Hampshire
Department of Hesith and Human Servleea

Name: CKni+iM $on+or\ »tllo

D'trtc+Ji

Community Action Program Belknap-Marrknack CounMes

9/24/2020

rDate IcwineAgri
Executive DirectorUe

CoiTununHy Aoicn PjogrwB Btiuitp-Mefrlmick Couittlw A/nerdment 91
S5-2020.BHS4>4-PeRMA.26-A01 PseeSoK.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

10/02/20

Catherine Pinos. Attorney

I hereby certify that me foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Communli], Action Progrcm Belknap-MeiTlmtekCounlletAmendment SI

SS-^OBHS-04-PERMA-26-A01 Page 4 Of 4
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STATE OF HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DrVISION OF BCO/^OMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9474 I.8004S2-334S Cit 9474

Fax:603'27|.4230 TDDAeceu: 1400-735-2964 ww«r.6)ihl.nb.|0v

September 30.2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council /

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to individuals and families facing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed $443,456, effective per the dates
indicated in the table below, upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through the completion
dates indicated in the table below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor 0 Location
Effective

Date

Completion
Date

Total

Amount

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties.

Inc.

177203-B003
Belknap &
Merrimack

Counties

12/1/19 11/30/20 $181,202

Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.

177511-R001 Sullivan

County
11/01/19 10/31/20 $71,012

Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.

177511-R001 Sullivan

County
11/01/19 10/31/20 $117,669

The Mental Health Center for

Southern New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life

Management

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
& Coos

Counties

12/1/19 11/30/20 $73,573

Total $443,456

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with authority
to adjust amounts-wiihin the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FtSCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
andtimingof grant terms do not align with slate or federal Tiscal years. The start dale of a grant is tiased
on the month In which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval'requests, occurring iri various months
throughout the year.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and trie Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of these requests is for trie provision of Permanent Housing programs that deliver
rental and leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative services
for individauls and families who face chronic homelessness to promote trie ability of participants to live
more Independently.

Collectively, these vendors will provide permanent housing and supportive seArices to a minimum
of eighty (60) participants for the tola! contract period among ail agreements in this submission from
November 1.20t9irirou9h November 30. 2020.

The attached agreements represent four (4) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of which
have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located throughout
the state, to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's Continuum
of Care Program,

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the vendors,will facilitate participants' movement into sustained permanent housing while providing
connections with community services to maximize the participant's ability to live more independently.

HUO established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and fiomelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes;

(1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to. engage broad-based, community-wide involvement In addressing
homelessssness on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support servicies for individuals
and families who face homelessness.

The Bureau ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

' ' , (2) Statistical reports are submitted by (he vendor on a semi-annual basis which include various
demographic information and income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) Each vendor is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management fnformation System. The NH Homeless Management information
System is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of these agreements, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests, supportive services for
individuals and families who face homelessness in the areas served by the vendors may not be available
in their communities, additionally there may be an increase in demand for services placed upon each
region's focal welfare authorities. It may also result in individuals and families becoming homeless.
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His Excetlency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HonoraUe Council
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Area served: Beiknap, Coos, Merrimack. Sullivar) and Western Rockingham Counties; a
minimum' of eighty (80) individuals and/or (amities will be served collectively.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Commuhily Planning and Development, Catal^ of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFOA) #14.267. FAtN #s: NHO1O0LlTO0t8O2; NH0066L1T001805; NH0079L1T001805; and
NH0001L1T0011806,

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

spectfully submitted.

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

T^rOrporioioiio/ HmliftonJ Human Strvieet'Miuion is tojoi'ieomniunilittand/omilia
in proaidinf epportunilits fo' eitixeif (( ocAi'rue AcotlA and indtpendtntt.
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FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-9S-42-423Ot0-r927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS:

HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Comtnunlty Acton Program Beiknap-Manimack CounUes, Inc. (V6ntfor01772O9-BOO3)

(Rapid Re-Houalng. Pefrnanonl HoualnQ Pregraml

State Flacat Year CiassfAccount Ciasa Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500751 Contracts for Program Servtces •  T80 5105,701.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 575,501.00

Suts-Total 5181,202.00

SouOiweslem Community Servlcea, Inc. (Vendor 177511-ftOOI)

(Central StroeL Permanent Housing Program)

Sute Fiscal Year Ciasa/Account Class TlUe Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program T0D 547.341,00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program TBD 523.671.00

Sub-Total 571,012.00

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor0177S11-ROO1)

(fresh Steps. Penninant Housing Program)

State fiscal Year Class/Account Class TlUe Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Ceniracts for Program TBD 578.445.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor Program TBD S39.224.0C

$ut>-ToUt 5117,569.00

The Mental Health Centar (or Sei/them New Hampshire dba CLM Center for Life Management (Vendor d1741l6-R001)

(Shelter Plus Cars Permanent Housing Program)

Slate fiscal Year Class/Account Class TIUo Job Numtter Amount

2020 102-5CO731 Contracts lor Program TBD .530.655.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program TBD 542.918 00

Sub-Total 573,573.00

Grand Total 5443.456.00

Continuum of Care Permanent Housing
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA Page 1 of 1
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Subjeci: Cflmintilim gf C"" R'nid (^e-Hoiuina Proerem. SS-?Q20-BHS-Q4.PERMA.7fi
FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcnien S/I/IS)

NOliW- Thijegreemaii and at! ofiiiaiiachmenu shall become public upon submission lo Governor and
EKecuiive Council for approval. Any informiiion ihai is private, conridenliel or proprietary musi
be clearly identiHed lo the agency and agreed to In vvriting prior to signing the contract.

ACRECMENt
The State oTNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree u rollows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

lOENtlFICATION.
I.I Suie Agency Name
Oepanment of Health and Human Services

I.} Contractor Name

Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimacle Counties, Inc.

1.5' Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225.1295

1.6 Account Number

03-95.42.423010.7927 102-
500731

1.9 Contracting OITicer for State Agency
Noihan D. White, Director

ComraetorSignaturc

JAJiAS^ i A' Ogju
: ofNewx^^pshijAcknotvledgemeni; Sute i pshir

1.2 State Agency Address
129 PkiLsant Street

Concflfd,NH0330l.3«57

1.4 Conirici'or Address
2 Industrial Park Orlvc

PC Box 40(6
Concord, NH 03302.1016

1.7 Completion Date

November 30,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

SI8I,202

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603.271.9631

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

e County ofMerrlmack

Oif-' 9/26/2019 , before the undersigned ofTiccr. personally appeared the person ideniiried in bloek 1,12, or satisfactorily
proven to be Ihe person wtwse name is signed in bloek 1, 11, and acknowledged that $/he executed this docurrtent in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 .Signaiure'prNniBry Public or iusticc ofthe Peace

■i.!3.2 Name andTttleoi Notary or Jusiice of the Peace
KATxy l;mo«mao Netoy PutfD. NH

My CemnWan EiQbw OCBMrl r. tea
1.14- Sioie Agency

flrS Approvatby I

By:

ure 1.15 Na)ne and Title of State Agency Signaiory

. Ocpirtmeni of Admitiisraiion, Division of Personnel (i/opp/ieeblt)

Director, On;

1.17 Approval^ lhe>TOrney General (Form, Substance and Esecuilon) p/opplieable)

By;
I

1.18 Approv^l^^he Governor and Executive Council (i/opplitebU}

By; On:

Page I of4

VXSIriai ktnt»i»A
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2. EMfLOVMENTOFCONTRACTOR^ERVlCCSTO
8E PERFORM ED. 1>e Sui« of Ne»v Hampshire, acting
Lhrough ihe agency idemiried in block 1.1 ("Siaie"), engages
conirtcwr ideniiTied in Wock 1.3 ("Coniractor") lo perform,
and ihc Comracior shall perform, ihe vwk or sate of goods, or
boih, idcniificiJ and more panicularly described in ihe ailachcd
EXHIBIT A which is mcorporaied herein by reference
("Senrieei").

J, EFFECTIVE OATE/CCMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Noiwithslonding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and lut^eci lo the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcrcundcr, shall become eiTeciivc on the date the Ooverttor
and Executive Courvcil at^rove this Agreement as irtdicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, In which case
the Agreement shall become cITective on the. date the
Agreement Is signed by the State Agency ais shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior lo the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the ConirKlor prior
to ihe-Effcciive Date shall be pttformed ei the sole riskofihe
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effcetivc. the State shall have no liability to the
Contraetor, Including without limiiaiion, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified inbloek 1.7.

4. CONOITIONaLNATUREOFAGREEMENT.
Noitviihsuinding any provision of this Agreement to the
comrery, oil obligations of (he State hereunder,.including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and conlinutd appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such avajlablc appropriated
funds, in Ihe event of a reduction or lermlnnilon of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor noii.ce of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or untvaiiable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of'
payment ore identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 tvhich is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State ofihe contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Coniractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, end shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Conirocior for the Services. The State
shall have no liab'li'y w the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

S J The Sute reservu the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permiited by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7<or any other provision ©flaw.
5.4 Noitvjthsiartding any provision in this Agreement to Ihe
contrary, and noiwilhstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hercunda, exceed Ihe Price Limitation set fortft in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 Inconneeiion with the performance of the Services, the
Contraetor shall comply with all statutes, law}, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duly upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

'laws. This may include the requirement lo utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, irtcluding vision, hearing and speech, con
communicate with, receive Information from, and convey
informsiion to the Contraetor. In addition, the Contraetor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or naiioncl origin and will take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies ofthe
United Stales, the Contraetor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States Issue to
implemeni these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
pcnhit the State or United States access (0 any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliirtce with all rules, regulations and orders,
and (he covenants, terms and cortditionsof (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall ol its otvn expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform ihe Services. The Contractor
tvarrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
la^vj.

7.2 Unless Otherwise auihorlted in writing, during the term of
this AgreemenL and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1,7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subconiroetor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a Slate
employee or official, who Is materiaily involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4
Conlraclor Initials
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Agreement. This provision shell survive icrmlnsiion of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Conireciing Onieer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shell be (he State's represenintive. in the event
ofeny dispute concerning tfie imerprciationofihis Agrecmem,
the Conuociing OITicer's decision shell be rmai for the Slate.

8. EVENT OF OEFAULTTREMEOIES.

8.1 Any one or more of (he following oeis or omissions of the
Coniracior shall consiiiuie en event ofdefsuti hereundcr
{•'Event of Oefauli"):
B.I.I failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
5.1 .2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr; ond/or
8. i .3 failure to perform any other covenant, lenn or condition
oflhisAgreemem.

6.2 Upon the occurrence of any Eveni of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of (he following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor e written notice specifying the Event
ofOefauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, ihiny (30)
days from the date of the notice; and iflhe Event of Oefauli is
not timely remedied, lermirutc this Agrecmem, cfTeciivc itvo
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Coniracior a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending ail payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering ihaiihc portion of (he conirect price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date ofsueh notice unlil such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid lo the Coni/acior;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Slate may owcio
the Cortiraetor any damages the Suie suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement us breached andpttrsue anyofils
remedies at law or in equity, Or both.

9. DATA/ACCeSS/CONFIOENTIALiry/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
informaiion and things developed or obtained during the
perfomtance of, or acquired or developed by retuon of, Ihis
Agreement, irtcluding, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictonal reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic represenlBlions. computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, lelien, memoranda, papers, end documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchoKd tviih funds provided for (hat purpose
under this Agrecmem, shall be the property of (he State, and
shell be returned to the State upon demand or upon

termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conlideniialiiyofdaia shall be governed by N.H . RSA
chapter 91-A or Other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior uTltten approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event ofan early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the compteiion of the
Services, ihe Coniracior shall deliver lo the Comreciing
OfPccr, not later than fifleenflj) days aRer the dale of
termltuiion, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the coniraei price earned, lo
and including the dale of icrminaiion. The form, subject
mauer, conieni, and number of copies of (he Tcnninaiion
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

U. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Coniracmt is in all
respects an ittdependeni contractor, end is neither an agent nor
an empieyee of the Stele. Neither the Contractor nor any of Its
officers, employees, agents or members ihall hove authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emolumems provided by the State to its employees.

(2. ASSlCNMENT/DELECATIONfSUBCCNTRACrS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
iiHCresi in this Agreement without (he prior wrinen noiice and
consent of the State. None of the Scrvlcca shall be

Subconiracied by the Coniracior wlthoui the prior written
rtoiice and consent of (he State.

13. INDEMNlFiCATION. The Contractor shell defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its ofricers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by Ihe
State, its ofTccrs and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilitiesor penalties assened against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, an account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) (he acts or omissions of (he
Coniracior. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a tvaiverofihe
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to ihe State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain end
maintain In force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obuin and moinuin In force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive generot liability insurance ogalnsi all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
ofnoi less than SI .OOO.OOOpcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause ofioss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
lest than 80Vi of the whole replacement valite of (he property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorvmenis approved for use In the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Deparvneni of
Insurance, end issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Intlials
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14.3 Tht Contractor ihail burnish to die Contracting OfTlccr
idcniiried in block 1.9, or his or her succcjxtr, a ceriiflcate())

of insurance for atl insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OITicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccniricaie(s) of
insurance for ell ren<wal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) ttays prior to the e.xpiretion
date ofeach of the insurance policies. 'niecenir)caie(s)of
insurance and any renetvals thereof shall be aitached and arc
incoiporated herein by referciKC. CkIi centrics(c(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block. 1.9, or his
or her sueeessor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cahcellaiionor modincation of the policy.

IS. WOAKCRS-COMPENSATION.

I S.I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
ceniries and \nmnts that the Contractor is in complianee with
or e.xempi from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 2tl-A
("IVerkert' Cempenteiie/t").
li.J To the e.xient the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.K. RSA chapter 211-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with sciivlilcs which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Conuacior shall
furnish the Contracting OfTiCcr identified in bliKk 1.9, or his
Orihcr successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the

manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable rcnewalfs) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible forpayment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefu for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee Of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws In connection tvith the performance of the
Services undcrihis Agreement.

Id. WAIVER OF BREACH.'No failure by the Slate to
enforce any previsions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of die Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parly
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stoles Post Ofllcc addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in bloeks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may bcomentkd,
waived or diKhorged only by on instrument In writing signed
by the parties hereto and only aRcr approvol of such
amendment, ivaiver or discharge by the Governor and

Executive Council of the State of Nevy Hampshire unless no

luch approval Is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agraemeni shall be construed In accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, antS Is binding upon ond
Inures to the benefit of (he panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to e.xpress their mutual

. intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend (o
benefit any third paniu and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrcemem
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in (he interprciti ion, construction or meaning ofthe
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions Set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT Care incoiporeied herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. in the event any ofihc provisionsof
(his Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain In full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall .
be deemed on original, consiiiuies the entire Agreement and
understanding between the paAies. and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Rapid Re<Houslng. Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Apolleable to AH Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the'language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS
Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court Of federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
Slate, through the Bureau of Housing Supports (8HS), has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For (he purposes of this agreement, the OepartmenI has identified-the Contractor as a
subrecipieni, in accordance with 2 CFR.200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures esiablished-under 24 CFR 576.103(b}, US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authonzed representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence lo federal and state financial and conridenliality laws,
and agrees to compty with the program narralives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public (.aw 102-
550 and 24 CFR 576 and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH Hft4lS policy, including
specific information requireil for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and lime required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for information security requirements and Exhibit 1 for privacy and security
requirements for protected health information.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goat of this program, which^is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless Individuals and families lo permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

CAAB-U. R*pH R*4levtlA0 EeTtfl A

8SmM>lS44-PERIM-2f Pigttcrs

CorcrMtf MWi

CM*



OocuSIgn Envelope ID: B40:M316-742e-4t1B-83O2-7979CB92BlAC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (or all projects funded by the CoC
Program. Emergency ̂ lulions Grants Program, and Housing Opportunities (or Persons with
AIDS Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24 CFR 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing program that is targeted
to serve thirty-seven (37) homeless individuals and families, which includes but is no! limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the 'Housing First* model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation (or
the most severe reasons, once available opiions have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing: and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participani, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in (he community Independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
' program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3,1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576-500(b);

2.3.1.2, Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish 'at risk of homelessness' status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevenilon assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c)', and

,  2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
.documentation of each program parllcipanl who moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic violence, baling violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 576.S1(c}(3). The Coniractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records: court records or law enforcement
records; or written certilicaiion by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household: and

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, daliitg violence,
or sexual assault or stalking; which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family .member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or sen/ice provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
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assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perjpeirator of the violence, including
emails, volcemails. text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or (he head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participanl. the Contractor shall
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor;

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents, which may include the rrtost recent wage statement,
unemployment compensation statement, public benefits statement, and' banic
statements for the assets held by the program participant and income received before
^e date of the evaluation: and

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party, which may include an employer or a government benefits
administrator, or (he written certification by the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of tiie income the program participant received
over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To (he extent that source documents end third-party verification are unobtainable, (he
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that (he
program participanl is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homeiessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicabte. the Contractor shall keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program

'  participants that remain in the program for more than a year ar>d adjusted (he service
package accordingly. and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(l)(ii)|F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance reguiremenl in 24
CFR 57fl.91.

2.3.1.6. Housina Standards. The Contractor shall retain documentation of compliance with (he
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

_2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shall document the types of supportive services provided
under the Contractor's program arid the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor
shall keep documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually and that the
service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance wjth;

2.4.1. The Qraanizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 576.95(c);

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 570.95(b): and

CAPR-M. RtpM R*41«uilng e»«i* CoWWoWUBi qa
S9-»2MMSR4J>ERtMH



OocuSign Envelope ID; e4034316-7423-411B-83D2-7979CB92B1AC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 57B.9S(dl.

2.5. The Conlractof shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
(hat complies wi(h the requirements in 24 CfR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
(0 the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with;

2.6-t. The Homeless Pafticioatlon requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Failh-hased Adivtlies requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578,67(b);

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housino bv maintaining copies Of all marketing, outreach, end
Other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c):

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable:

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Coniradof must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. Procurement Recuirements in 24 CFR 85 36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting spedfic confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except vrith written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project, and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipieni and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are oihenivise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to stale or federal law or regulation.

3. Pfoaram Reoorlino Rcoulrements

3.1. -The Contractor shall submit the lollowlng reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date,
an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year NOFA. The APR shall
be in the form required or specified by the State, and submitted to the address listed in section
1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the Slate in compliarice with NH HMIS policy.
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4. Contract Administration

4.1. > The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend ail meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such rheetings five (S)

' worfdng days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance fileaaurea

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to ell terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in alt applicable HUD
r^ulations including, but not limited to the following;

5.1.1--1. httPsi/Avww.hudexchanqe.into/DfOQfams/coc/svstem-performarttc-measufesAitouidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed In the Annual
Performance Report Section 3. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall Implement and participate In the Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in
Section 2.1., Scope of Services. Exhibit A, in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24
CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor ̂ all provide a permanent housing program as outlined in Section 2.2., Scope of
Services, Exhibit A and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.3. The Cwitraclor shall provide accurate and limely reporting as detailed in Section 3,. Program
Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.

6.4. The Contractor shall be subjecf to all performance measures as outlined in Section S, Performance
Measures. Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

t. Racfd Re«HouslnQ Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. The State shall pay ihe Coniractor en amount not lo exceed the Form P.37. Block 1.8. Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catatog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: OVa

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.287

1.2.4. FAIN Number; NH0100L1T001802

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department ol Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title; Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing Permanent Housing Program
1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. December 1, 2019 - November 30.2020: not to exceed $181,202

1.2.8. Funds allocalion under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Administrative Expenses:. $4,274

1.2.8.2. Supportive Services: $11,700

1.2^8.3. Rental Assistance: $165.228

1.2.6.4. Total program amount: $181,202

1.2.8.5, Vendor l^atch (25%) $46,396

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees lo
' submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2, One {1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contraclof is not subject to the reouirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an auditedTmancial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of (he United Stales in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and F-unctions.' within ninety (90) days after contract
completion date.

3. Protect Costa: Payment Schedule: Review by the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Projecl Activities, as
determined by the Stale to be eligible and viewable for payment in accordance with Public Law

- 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR pan 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 570.39 through
576.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project four>d in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1.. The Conlracior shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Maich requirements are to be documented vnlh each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of fur^ds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

3.3.4. Cash match must be used for the cosi of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24
CFR 578. The Conlractor shall. •

3.3.4.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.4.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted.

3.3.4.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived.

3.3.4.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation ol regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be In accordance with
the approved line items as specified in Exhibit 6-1, Budget, and as defined by HUD under
the provisions of Public law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject to the
availability of sufficient furids.
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3.4.2. The Conirador shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 4. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the Stale prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Parent of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Tiiie XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitie A-Housing Assistance (Public Law t02-S50), in ar) amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in section 1.2 Exhibit 8.

3.4.4. Schedule of Payments;

3.4.4.1. Alt reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the fifteenth {15*) day of each
month, for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the
Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment
requesi form and any other documentation required, as designated by the State,
which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.4.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to: .
housinQsuoDortsinvoicesiSdhhs.nh.QOv

3.4.4.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expense's-

3,5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the Slate shall disallow any items of expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, informing the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the Stale disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such cosls. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 6. or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expense EllalbHltv

4.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, (or contract services.
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4.2. OoeraiinQ Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating expenses indude;

4.2.1.1.. Maintenance and repair of housing.

4.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (inciuding property and car).

4.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on me useful life of me system and
expected replacement cost).

4.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5. Utilities, induding'eiectricity. gas andwater.

4.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

,4.2.2. Ineligible.costs include;

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

4.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only fadlilies.

4.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

4.3. SuDDOrtlve Services

4.3.1, Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

4.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

4.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Senrice Needs. The costs of the assessment required by
578.53(a) (2).

4.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-lime moving costs are eligible and
indude truck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of Individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs.

4.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children fipm families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible.

4.3.2.5. Education Services, The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible.

4.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential The cosl of providing reasonable stipends to
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program participants in employment assistance and job training'programs is also
an eligible cost..

4.3.27. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible.

4.3.2.6. Housing search and courtseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locale, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible.

4.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are (he fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or famlty's ability
to obtain and retain housing.

4.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homeiessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training.

4.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family,.or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psycholro'pic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems.

4.3.2.12. Outpatient health services Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
' medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals.

4.3.2.13. Outreach Services The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing Immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program pariicipants. are eligible.

4.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxirication and other inpalient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible.

4.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

4.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This forrh of assistance consisis of paying for utility deposits..
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies.

4.3.2.17. Direct provision of sen/ices. If the service described in 24CFR 578.63(e) (1)-(16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient. eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17).

4.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section Is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive sen/ices are not eligible costs.
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4.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
parbcipanis who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIVfAIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

4.4. Rental Assistance

4.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

4.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal, State, or local sources.

4.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures.
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CPR 57B.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

4.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 moniKs of rent;

4.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

4.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

4.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

4.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
10 the security deposit and payment of first monlh's'rent.

4.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and malntenar\ce of each unit.

4.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

4.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with ail State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.

4.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance; Tenani-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 576.51.

4.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size In which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subredpients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for (he first year'and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Shod and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

CAAS.MCewiliil.lAe.RflH EWtiiB CeniMialHiiM, QH
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4.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organizalioh. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental heatih agency established as a public
nonprofit o^anizalion. Program participanls must reside in housing owned or
leased by the spor^sor.

4.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
en existing stroctore. where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participanls will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

4.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at" least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automaticalty renewable upor>
expiration for terms thai are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party. •

4.5. Administrative Costs:

4.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

4.5.1.1. The Conlractof may use funding awarded under this part, for Ihe payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execulion of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out aclivilies eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 ihrough 578.57. because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities.

4.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not lirnited to. necessary expenditures for the following;

4.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program admiriistralion.

4.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include Ihe entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose' primary responsibilities with regard to Ihe program involve
program ailministration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
admlnisiration assignments. The contractor may only use one of these
melhods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following;

4.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to those
budgets and schedules:

4.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

4.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing inieragency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients end Contractors to carry out program activities;

4.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

CAP e-M Cwifu. Inc ARH EWHB CWHvWMl. _
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4.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring fndings;

4.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.t.8. Evaluating program results against staled objectives:

4.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described m
sections 4.5.1-2.1.1.1. through 4.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit 8.

4.5.1.2.1.1.10.Travel costs incurred for official business in cafrying out the program;

4.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative" senrices performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services.

^  accounting services, and audit services; and:
4.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the

program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space.

4.5.1.2.l.l.lS.Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings.

4.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CPR 578.31

4.6. leasing:

4.6.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
(0 pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or porliohs thereof,
to prdvide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the contractor, their
parent organization, any other related ofganization(8). or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

4.6.2. Requirements:

4.6.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space, in addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space. '

4.6.2.2. Leasing individual unils. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing unhs, the reni paid must reasonable in relation lo rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and managemeni services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed

'  HUO-determined fair market rents.
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4.6.2.3. Uliiities. If electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utililies may
be paid from leasing funds, if uliiities are not provided by landlord, these ulility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

4.6.2.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, m an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

4.6.2.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 57S.77(a).

4.6.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 576.77.

4.6.2.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
' participants are program.income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR

578.97.

4.6.2.8. Transition, Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

4.6.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

'4.6.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

4.6.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly: .funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

4.6.2.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

4.6.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that rt already owns to itself.

4.6.2.14. Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local housing codes. licensti^.
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

4.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified jn HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

•4,8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.
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5. Contractor Financial Manaoemertt System

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederai expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial managemeni system that complies wilh .2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the Stale may require.
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SPPCIAL PRQV/ISinMS

Cohtrectora ObiiQBtions: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
irMividuais and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: ttthe Coniractoris permitted to determine the eligibility
of indiwduals such eligibility delermlnaiion shall oe made in accordance with applicable federal and
•tale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. -Time and Manner of Determir^atlon: Eligibilily determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for (hat purpose and shad be made and remade at aueh limes as are prescribed by
the Department.

2. -Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include aB
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other iriformalion as the
OepartmenI requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation ̂
regarding eligibility determinations that the OepartmenI may request or require.

4. Fair Hearfngs; The Contractor understands that all appticants for services hereunder. as well as .
Indivltfuals declared Ineligible have a right lo a fair hearing regarding that delermlnabon. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees (hat all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
en appltcalion form end that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Infonned of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with OepartmenI regulations.

5. Qrstultles or Kickbacks; The Contractor agrees thai it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of Ihe Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Slate in order to influence.lhe performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slate may terminate this Contract and any sub-coniraci or sub-agreement It it is
determined that paymer^ts, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by

' any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contraclor.

6. Retroactive Paymanta: Notwllhsianding anything to Ihe contrary contained in Ihe Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the pahles-
hereto, (hat no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided lo any Iridlvidual prior to the Effective Dale of the Conlrecl
and m payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Conlrector for any services provided
phot lo the dale on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by Ihe
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to Ihe contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed lo obligate or require the Department lo purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary lo assure the quality ot such service, or at a
rale which exceeds the rate charged by Ihe Contractor to ineligible individuals or oiher third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the OepartmenI shall determine that Ihe Conlractor has used
paymenis hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess.of such rates charged by the Conlractor lo ineligible individuals
or other third party furtders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment lo the Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursementln

excess of costs; .
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7.3. Demand repayment gf the excess payment by the Contractor in which everM failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ̂ 1 funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to'be ineligible for such services at
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIOeNTIALITY:

8. Malntanance ef Roeords: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foDowing records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Recorpt: books, records, documents end other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accouniing procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase reguisilions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, labor time cards. payroUs. and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. • -Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records lor each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, whicti records shall include CD records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient).'records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each paiient/recipieniof services.

9i Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Oepattmeni within 60 days after tlte close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Offlce of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Crganizations'-and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizalions.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain.to financial compliance audits.

9-1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Cor^tract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports end records maintained pursuantio
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, exceipts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: in addition to end not in any way In limitation of obligations o( the Contract, M is
understood and agreed by the Contractor thai the Contractor shall be held liable for any atatb
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken oi which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be cor^fideniiai and sh8ilr^ol
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, (hat pursuant to stele laws end the regulations of
the OeparlmenI regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and (he Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with '
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

EiWbliC-SpedilProvtjlons ConuacwinlUm
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenartts and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of (he Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal ar^d Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the (eOewing reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Oepartmeni
11.1. Interim Financial Repods: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-aiiowabte expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other informal>or> as shall be deemed satisfactory by (he Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such FIrunciai Reports shall be submitted orr the form
designated by the Department or deemed sat'sfactory by the Department.

11.2.' Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Conlracl. The Final Report shall be in a form sausfaciory to the Oepartmerti ano shall
contain a aummsry statement or progress toward goals and objectives staled In the Proposal

and other information required by the Oepartmeni.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract end all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the lermlnation of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofihe
Final Expersdilure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
cosis hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion.'to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from Ihe performance of the services of the Contract shall include IhefoHowtng
slaiemeni:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, documeni etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire. Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by Ihe Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

- required, e.g., the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prfer Approval.and Copyright Ownership: All malerials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Conireclor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contraclwllhout
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Faellitles: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In (he operation of any facilities
lor providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of (he services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of Ihe said facility or the performance of the said servces.
Ihe Contraclor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of'each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply vrilh all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements ofihe State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local buHding end xoning codes, by
laws and regulations

16. Equal Employihent Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Cenlractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of SSOO.ODO or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit en EEOP Certificalien Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on ̂le. For recipients receivmg less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than SO employees, regardless of the amount of the eward. the recipient will provide en
EEOP CertiricatJon Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
prolii organizations. Indian Tn'tws. and medical and educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submit a eertirication form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP CertlficaUon Forms ere available el: hrtp:/fwww,o)p.usdo|/3boul/ocr/pdfs/cei1,pdl.

17. L.lmlted English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, end resuKing agency guidance, natlonalorigin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with (he Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1666 end Title vi of the Civi)
Rights Act of 1984. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to iis programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employoe Whistloblowor Protections: The
following shall apply to sD contracts that exceed the Sim^ifled Acquisition Threshold as defined ln4B
CFR 2.101 (currenlly.SISO.OOO)

COVTAACTOR EMP10Y€E WhjSTLEBUOWER RCHTS AMD REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
V\frtiSTLEBi.owER Rights (SEP 20l3)

(8) This contract ano employees werldng on this contract will be subject to the whisbeMower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by secHon 828 of the National Defense Aulhorlzation Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239} and FAR 3.608.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees <n writing, in the predominant language of (he workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes thai the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors Wth
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responslbliily end accountability lor the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functionfs). This Is accomplished through a written agreemeni that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is nol adequate.'Subcontractors are subject lo the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contraclor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those condilipns.

When the Contractor delegates a function lo a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do (he f^iowing:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies aetlvi'tiesandreperting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if (he subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitorlhesubcontraclor'a performance on an ongoing basis
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P*9e4e(5 OeieSlSj^^



DocuSIgn Envelope 10: 64034316-7428-411M3D2-7979CB92B1AC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CihibltC

19.4; Provide to OHHS an annual schedule Ideniirying all aubconlractors. delegated functionsend
responslblliliei, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at ita discretion, review ant) approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies defeencics or areas tor Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take correclrve action.

20. Contract DofinltJona:

20.1. COS'TS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items cl expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and. reimbursable in accordance with cost end occouniing principles aslablished
In accordance with stale and federal laws, regulations, rules and erdera.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Heallh and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the documeni submlned by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containirtg a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by Ihe Contractor in accordance Mth the terms and conditions of the
Contract end setting forth the lolai cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract

20.4. UNIT: For each service that Ihe Contraclor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 8 of the Conlract.

20.5. FEOERAL/STATe lAW; Wherever,federal or state laws, regulalions, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, elc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract wfll not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

EiMtili C - Spedil FrovlsJons Coniiscnr inlUali
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REVISIONS TO STANDARO CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Ravlalona to Forrn P-37, Gonoral Provisions

1.1. Sectlort 4. CondlBonal Nature of Aoreemenl Is reolaeed ai followm

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

Notwilhstanding any provision ol this Aoreemenl to the contrary, all obligalions of the Stale
hereunder. Including wHihoul limitation, trie continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any lubiequenl changes lo the appropriation or availability of funds effected by
any elate or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eiiminaies, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avalisblllly' of lundlng for ihit Agreemeni and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, leiminaiion or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such hjnds become available, if e,ver.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce, lerminaie or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving Ihe Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Accounifs) Ideniified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termrnaiion is amended by adding Ihe following language:

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at anytime (or any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after glwng the Contractor wriRen notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In Ihe eveni of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
lermination. develop and submit lo the Stale a Transition Plan for services under ihe
Agreement, Including but not limited to. idenlitying the present and future needs of clienli
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process lo meet those needs.

10.3 The Contrador shall fully cooperate with the Stale and shall promptly provide detailed
information lo support the Transiiion Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transiiion Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stale
as requested.

10-4 In the event thai services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitlohed to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or Ihe Stale, (he Contractor shall provide a process (or
unlnterrupied delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about Ihe translbon. The Contractor shall include the- proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan eubmlRed to the Stale as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Deportment reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery ol services, available funding. wriRen agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor end Executive Council.

ExMDli C i T R«vl«lont/EiMpi)ens lo Sttrtdi^ Conmo Itnguige COAtncior MStis
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CEftTlflCATlOW REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5l51-5160oftheOn>o-Free WerkplacieAct of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D: 41
U.S C. 701 et seq.). and funher agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US OEPARTfMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by Ihe regulations Implemenling Sections S151-$160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. t00-e90. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amer^ded and published as Part II of the May 29. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that ihey will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a graniee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that 1$ a State
may elect to make one certification to the Oepartmenl in each federal fiscal year in lieu of cerlificales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant, false
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for' suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should -
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6SOS

1. The grantee certifies thai it wti) or wilt continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that Ihe unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees lor violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1 2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in ine workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of msinialning 3 drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counselirtg, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees lor drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (o);
1.4. Notifying Ihe employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) diat, as a condition pf

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by die terms of the siatement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a vioielion of a criminal drug

Statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, wtihin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving aclual notice of such conviction.
Em^oyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EiMaii O-CerUfluSan isgiidlneOnjg Pre* V«n0orlnlil»li
WodipUMRequlrtmenu 0 h/ (Q
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identificetion number<s) of each atfecied grant;

1.6. Teking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days ol recelvirtg rtotice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such en employee, up to and including

terminalion. consistent with the reguiremenis of the Rehabilitation Act of 1673, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse asslslarKe or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or local heallh.
law enforcement, or other approphale agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2.1.3, 1.4, l.S. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the peiformance of work done In
conrsecUon with (he speciTic grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check 0 if there are workplaces en file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:
Community Action Prouam Belkntp-MtrrimackCounties, Inc.

9/26/2019

Dale
ilM

Na Jeanne Agri
Executive Director

b^JOliO-CertlllullonrtgirdiriaOrupFr** VenSor Inlllili
WoOpltCa R*qulteni«nU ^ n
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CERTIFICAT>ON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidartce for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and hjrtheregrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions eiecute Ihe following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the besi of his or her knowledge and belief, lhat;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection wiih the awarding ol any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modiTicaiion of any Federal contract, gram. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-conlraclor).

2. if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vXll be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, or. en employee of a Member of Congress in connection vdih this
Federal conlracl. granl. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
ceniraclor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordence with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit £•(.}

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall cedlty and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material lepresenlation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificalion Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certifrcation shall be subject to a civil penalty of nol less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Community Action Progrim-Belknsp-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

Dale jeanne Agrl " Q
Executive Director

ErdUMI E • CtrtiScsSon R«e>reing Lobbying Vender liVtlils
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CeRTIFtCATION REGAftOINQ OEBARMENT. SUSPEH510W

AND OTHER ReSPONSiaiLITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gererei Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
Executi ve Office of the President. Executive Order 12$49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Maners. and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections Vll and 1,12of the General Provisions execute the lollowfng
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing end submitUng this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is provldina the

certification set out below. *

2. The inabilily of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of panicipaiion in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participani shall submit an
explanation ol why it canr>oi provide the certification. The certificafion or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Oepartment of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determlnalibn whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure ol the prospective primary
participani to furnish a certification or an explanalion shall disqualify such person from partidpallon In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fad upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined lo enter into this transaction. If It is later deiermtncd that the prospective
primary participant Knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency lo
v4iom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at ariy time the prospect'ive primary participarrt teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

4.

5. The teirns 'covered transaction.* 'debarred,' "suspended,' •ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'participant.' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,* 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Oennilions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45CFR Part 76. See the
atlached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it Shan rwt KnoM^ngty enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a persori who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless aulhoriied by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant Further agrees by submitting this proposal thai it will include the
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment. Suspension, (neligibillly and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by OHHS, without modification. In ail lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations (or lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participani in a covered transaction may rely upon a certlftcalion of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transeclion. unless it Knows that the certification is erroneous. A participani may
decide the method and frequency by whicr* it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

6. Nothing conlalned in the foregoing shall be construed to require eslablishmenl of a system of records
In order lo render in good faith il\e certification required by (his dause. The knowledge and

ErOUbllF-CeniRcstlwi RegtrOTng Debarmcnl, Svipsnston Venecvlnidtls
And OUieVReipOASltlEry Mtiurs ,
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information of a participant is not required lo exceed thai Mtiich Is normally possessed by a prudeni
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for (rattsscUons euthonzed under paragraph 6 of these instAJCtlons. il a participam in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction wllh a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily eiduded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available lo the Federal government, □HHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARYCOVEREO TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant cedifies to the best ol its knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals:
11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

are noi presently debarred, suspended, proposed (or debarmeni, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal oflense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a putilic (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlemeni, theft, forgery, bribery, falsiricadon or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;
are not presently-indicted for othenvise criminally or cfvBly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certincalion; end
have not wtthln a three-year period preceding this appltcalion/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slate or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary partidpani is unable to certify to any ol the statements in (his
ceitiftcation, such prospective panicipani shall allach an explanation to this proposal (contract)..

LOWER TieR COVERED TRANSACTlOffS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant. as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certiries to the best of Its knowledge end belief that II end its prirKlpals:
13.1. are riot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared irteligible, or

votunlarify excluded from paitidpallon In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to ceriify lo any ol the above, such

prospective participant shall ahach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

U. The prospective lower tier partidpani further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that II wiO
Include this clause entitled 'Ceriiricaticn Regarding Oebaiment. Suspension. Inellgibillly. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification In ad lower tier covered
transactions and in ad aoSdlalions for tower Her covered transactions.

Vendor Name:
Community Action Prop am Belknap-Merrimack Courrties, Inc.

9/26/2019
Date

■ TuiJ Executive Director ^

CUOMHSniorit
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIWHNATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OP FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBIQWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified in Section ol the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represenielive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute (he following
cetirication:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrlmlnatlon requlremenis. which may Include:

• the Omnibus Crtme Control and Safe Streets Act ol 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
redplenta of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either ir> employment practices Or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis olrace. color, religion, national origin, and sex. Tna Aci
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 {42 U.S.C. Section S672(b}] which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obSgations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefiis, on ihe basis of race, color, religton. national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal ' .
Employmeni Opporlumty Plan requirements;

- Ihe Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal rmanciai
assistance from discrfminaling on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity];

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1873 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis ol disabitry, in regard to employment and (he delivery of
services or benefils. in any program or actrvliy;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections l2l3l-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity (or persons with disabilities in employment Stale and local
government sen/Ices, public accommodaiions. commercial facilities, and transponaiion;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1693,1685-66). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis ol sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1075 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination ortihe
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal finanaal assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations -OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrfmination; Equal Employmeni Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13270 (equal protection of the taws for faith-based and community
organisations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
chleria for partnerships with (ailh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 20 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Failtf-Based
Organlzalions): and WMstleblower protections 41 U.S.C §4712 and The National Defense Authohzation
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L. 112-239. enacted Janua^ 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Erthancement of Contract Employee WhisUeblower Protections, which protects empfoyees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon v^^lch reliance is placed vrhen the
agency awards the grant. False certlficaiion or violation ol the certificalion shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

. EAitflO
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In the everft a Federal or Stete court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discriminalion after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or lex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wilt forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the 8pplical>ie contracting agency or division vnihin the Department of Health and Human Serviees. and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represenlative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followfr>g
eertiTicaitan:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlraci) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Community Action ProgrsftTBelknap Merrimack Counties. Inc.

Date Jeanne Agri ^ \
executive Director v 1

CiMWO
VenJpfInWsIs^ Trl

I  'Cn#iiwiii ■»» nsn4«eMM««s l«i« if &9i«tiil«ni
M WflMlM prWKiWU

M7/II
WeWewprwiwu ^ ^

Oi(«



OocuSign Envelope 10: B4034316-7428U11B-«302-7979C89281AC

New Hetnpehlre Department of Health and Human Servtcee
Eihlbll H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubBe Law 103-227;Part C - Enviionmenial Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Childrer^ Ac< of 1994

(Act), requires thai smoking not be permined in any portionofany Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entily and used routinely or regularly lor the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the ege of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does rtol apply to children's services provided In private residences. fadtlUes funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcald funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol Irealmenl. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resull in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
SIOODperday end/or the imposiiion of an adminlstrBlive compliance'order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gerteral Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and t.l2 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenifieatien:

1. 6y signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo comply with
all applicable provisions of Public law 103-227, Part 0. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

qmmuniiy Action Progr

9/26/2019

Date
»e:

BelkAsp-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.

Qjn^
jcanne Agri
Execuitve Director

cuowOniMii
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY

ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified ir) Section t.3 of (he General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurarwe Portability and Accountability Ad. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security ol Individually Identifiable Heellh Informalion, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 eppiicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Assodete* shall mean the Vertdor end suiKontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected heallh information under (his Agreement and "Covered Entity*
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meanir^g given such term in section 160.103 of Title 46, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the lemi "designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggreoation* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f- 'Health Cere Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
' in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Ctinical Health
Aci, TitleXlll. Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 ol the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

b- 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and (he Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Idenltliable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individuat' shall have the same meaning as the term'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Seclion 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identiriable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Heallh end Human Services.

k. •protected Heatlii Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
informalion' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. •Reotiired bv Law* shall have the seme meaning es the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 1M.103.

m. 'Secretafv' shall mean the Secretary of ihe Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Secufih/ Rule' shall mean Ihe Security Standards for Ihe Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR.Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments thereto.

0' ^Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health informalion that Is not
secured by e technology standard that renders protected heatih Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
e standards developing organization that is accr^ited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions . AJi terms not otherwise defined herein shall have Ihe meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

8. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibil A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all "
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any mariner thai would constitute a vialalion of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of Ihe Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for ihe health care operations of Covered'

Entity.

c. To Ihe extent Business Associate is permitied under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used Of further disclosed only as rcQuired by law or for the purpose lor which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement Irom such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with ihe HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of trie conftdeniialiry of the PHI, to the extent ii has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibil A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to objecl to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

srwi* Ejmwii veftdfli 1/inituO^ -
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Associate shall retrain from disclosing the PHI urttil Covered Erttity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered 6r>tity rtotifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restncilons and shati abide by any additional security safeguards.

{3) Obtloatlona and Actlvitlea of Businass Aaaoelate.

a. The Business Associate shall nolify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health inforrhation not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health informalior> entJ/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
• aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
lypes of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o ' The ur^auihorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to v/hich the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the '
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk essessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its inierna! policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the some
restrictions and conditions on the use end disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I), The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pufsuanl to this Agreement, with rtghts of enforcement and indemnification from such
businessassociateswho shall be governed by standard Paragraph«l3of the standard

' contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use end disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices eD
records, boolcs. agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosura
of PHI to the Covered Er^tity. for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days ol receiving a writler) request From Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PH l in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Seciion 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for en
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment end incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would tw required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for en accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. Wiihin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Assodate shall continue to extend the proteciions of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction it^feasible. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Enliiy, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity lhal the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQatlons of Covered Entity

a. •- Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limiiation($) in its
Hotice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limilation may affect Business Associate's
use or .disclosure of PHI

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.508 ordS CFR Section 164.506.

e. > Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
io the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Irnmediateiy terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a limeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither (ermination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miseellaneous

a. Definitions and Rcaulalofv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d- interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permil Covered Entity to comply wilh HiPAA. (he Privacy and Security Rule^
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SfflfCqgl'PP- ir any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the applicatton thereof to any
person(5) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
lemis and conditions of this Exhibit I ere declared severabie.

gurvival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disdosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph t3 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services
Community Action Program
Belkhap-Merri'mack Counties, Inc.

_ Name of the Vendc

spresentative sture OT Authorized
-

resentatn/e
^ionaiure of Autfforize

Jeanne Agri
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date ' '

Executive Director
TiUe of Authorized Representative

$/26/20l9
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (PFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Fede<3l Funding Accounlability and Transparency Aci (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grar^ls equal to or greater than S25.000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report en
data relaled to execubve compensation and associated fust-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grartt modifications result In a total award equat to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reportirrg requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS)must report the fotlowtng information for any
eubaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
t. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Furt'ding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Prograth source
6. Award title descriplive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Loeatioft of the entity
9. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 9)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 60*A of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. .Compensation Information is not already available through repotting to the SEC.

Prime grahl recipients must submit FFATA required data by Ihe end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Aeeountablliry and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-262 and Public Law 1 tO-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Conlracior'srepresentative. as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of Ihe General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named Vertdor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to Ihe NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

Community Action Prozfo^ Belkhsp-Merrimack Counties, [nc.

Date jesnneAgri
tjU? Executive Director

EtfUbb J- C«nKlc*il«n RtsiitUng tna FedenlFunding Vendor liUUili
AseOunlebOily And TtonipSfOnty AO (FFATA) CompBine# (t ̂ r 1^
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FOSMA

As (he Vendor identified in Section 1.3 oi the General Proviaions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour entlN is: 07-399-7S04

2. In your business or organization's preceding compteted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (t) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sutr^rants, and/or cooperalive agreements; arfd (2} S2S.000.000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

if the answer to >2 above Is NO, slop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
-business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section $104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
'19667

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the foiloy^g:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:.

Name:.

Name;.

Name:.

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount;.

Amourd:.

Amount:

cuo«sni«i)
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DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following lenns may be reflected and have (he described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized ecquisitlon, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than euthorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or poientiai access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Oepartmeni
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as ail medical, health, ftnandal, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Senrlces (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Infonnation (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax inlormation (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User* means any person cf entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee.
' business associale, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its dala, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for Ihe processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, irtstruction. or
consent, incidents include the loss of data through (heft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested and
approved, by moans of the Stale, to transmii) will be considered an'open
network'snd not adeouately secure for ihe transmission of unencryoted PI PPI
PHI or confidential OHMS data.

8. "Personal information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or irace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personaf
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or tdeniifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually idenliliabie Health
information at 45 C F.R, Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. Protected Health Information* (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
detlnitiort of "Protected Health Information' In Ihe HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R 6
160.103. ''

11. "Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for Ihe Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health information* means Protected Health information thai is
noi secured by a technology standard thai renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization lhai is accredited by
the American National Standards Insthute

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Busirtess Use arid Disclosure of Conftdeniial informalion.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including bul not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must noi disclose any Confidenllal Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a'
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that OHMS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if OHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions end must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disdosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Dala ot>lained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicaled in this Contract.

6. The Coniractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of ihspecling to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

n. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Dala between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
dala.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Conftdential
Data, the secure soclcet layers (SSL) must be used and tfie web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Website.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as Fiie Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting senrices. such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a vtriuai private network (VPN] when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

0, Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which infotmalion will be
transmlKed or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol <SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP lo iransmil Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriale disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-delelion cycle (i.e. Conndenilal Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, eR
data musi be encrypted to prevent inappropriale disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form il may exisi, unless, othenni/lse required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees ii will not store, transfer or process dala collected in
connection with (he services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security moniioring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
end/or Department oonrideniiai inlormation for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of prelecting Department confidential information,

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section iV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud musI be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
cunrentry-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anii-spyware, and anti-malware ulililies. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-Oeiection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with ihe State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabilify of the hosting
infrastructure.

8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor vnll maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems). Ihe Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
oblain written certification for ar^y Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
saniiization, or otherwise physically destroying (he media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Saniiization, National institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
tirne of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and .professional standards for retention requiremenis will be jointly -
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidenlial Data using a
secure rhethod such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terminaiion of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard Ihe OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derrvaiive data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies artd procedures to protect Departmeni
confidential informalion throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation. Iransfomiation. use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of Ihe
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential inlormalion for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education fw Its Ertd
Users In support of prolecltng Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an iniemal process or processes that .defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Stale of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Coniractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Departmeni and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreemenl.

9. The Contractor will work wih the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate lime frame at (he Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagemeni between the Departmeni and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingfy or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or ouiside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the information Security Office
leadership member wiihin the Department

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limiied to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal ageno'es. including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under Stale law. .

13. Contractor agrees to estatiUsh and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards lo protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//www.nh.gov/doii/vendor/index.htm
for the Department o( information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement informalion relating lo vendors.

14. Contractor agrees lo maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section Vi, This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this .
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pi, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoled and being
sent to and being received t}y email addresses of persons authorized lo
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confideniial Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiabie dale derived from DHHS Oala, must be stored in an area thai is
ptiyslcaify and technologicalty secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours es well as non-duty hour# (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, ir^ctuding any
derivative files containing personally identifiable iniormation. and in aO cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when in iransii. at rest, or wheri
stored on portable media as required in seclion'iv above.

h. in ail other instances Confidential Data musi be maintained, used ar>d
disctosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users wtll keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsiie inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contraa. including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such lime the Confideritia! Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V.. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immedialely, at the email addresses provided in
.Section VI.

The Conlractor musI further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306 in addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. identify incidenls;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents:

3. Report suspected of.confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidenls: and
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' S. Determine wtielher Breach nddftcation 1$ required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
optiorts, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents end/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficef@dhhs.nh.gov

B. OHHS Security Officer.

OHHSlnform8tionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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